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McHenry, Stephen (NHTSA)

From: Collins, Bill (NHTSA)
Sent: Thursday, December 10, 2009 4:00 PM
To: McHenry, Stephen (NHTSA); Quandt, Jeff (NHTSA); Yon, Scott (NHTSA)
Subject: FW:  narrative.doc

 
 

From: Hill, Scott D. [mailto:Scott.Hill1@sdsheriff.org]  
Sent: Thursday, December 10, 2009 2:50 PM 
To: Collins, Bill (NHTSA); 'Bill Collins' 
Subject:  narrative.doc 
 
 
 
FACTS: 
 
Notification: 
 
On 08-28-09 at 1837 hours, I was working as traffic enforcement unit 51T4B in the city of Santee.  I received a 
call (S7740359) of a fatal injury collision at the intersection of Mission Gorge Road and SR 125.  I arrived on 
scene at approximately 1840 hours.  All times, speeds, and measurements are approximate and were obtained 
with the assistance of the California Highway Patrol’s (CHP) Multidiscplinary Accident Investigation Team 
(MAIT).  A GPS coordinate system was used to obtain the area(s) of impact (AOI).  
 
Scene Description: 
 
The collision occurred on Mission Gorge Road at the intersection with State Route 125 North.  Mission Gorge 
Road is a major six lane divided asphalt roadway.  There are three eastbound and three westbound lanes, 
separated by a raised concrete center median.  Mission Gorge Road runs east and west and is a major, heavily 
traveled thoroughfare through the city of Santee.     
 
Westbound Mission Gorge Road at the intersection has two left turn lanes for vehicles entering southbound onto 
SR 125.  SR 125 meets Mission Gorge Road and forms a “T” intersection, which has three southbound lanes.  
On the terminating northbound lanes of SR 125 there are two dedicated left turn lanes and two dedicated right 
turn lanes.   
 
To the north of the intersection is an open, river bottom influenced field (San Diego River).  The open field area 
is bordered on its southern portion by a short fence constructed of wooden posts.  Immediately to the north of 
the wooden fence is a raised dirt burm.  The back side of the burm declines onto a large plateau.  The plateau in 
turn declines onto the river bottom itself.  The river bottom at the time of this incident contained no water from 
the San Diego River.   
 
The speed limit on Mission Gorge Road is posted at 40 MPH.  The roadway is traveled and worn.  The three 
phase overhanging traffic lights controlling the intersection were unobstructed and functional.  There is an 
active construction site over SR 125 on both the east and west side of the freeway.  The site involves an 
overpass across SR 125 that is a continuation of SR 52 east and westbound.  There were no construction 
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workers present.  At the time of this collision, approximately 1837 hours, it was daylight and transitioning to 
dusk.  The weather was clear and the sun setting in the west.  The roadway was dry.     
 
Parties: 
 
Driver,  (D1 ), was located in the driver seat of V1.  D1  was identified as the 
driver of V1 by Medical Examiner Investigator James Buckley (#14).  D1 was later identified as an 
Officer with the California Highway Patrol (CHP).  I  
 
 
was present when Investigator Buckley removed D1  body from the driver’s seat of V1.  Investigator 
Buckley retrieved a California Driver’s License from V1, in the area of the driver’s seat. Investigator Buckley 
identified the driver as .  According to Investigator Buckley’s preliminary assessment at the 
scene, D1  had extensive blunt force injuries throughout his body, with extensive full body burns.  
 
By way of information received via CHP sources and Officer B. Pennings (Information Officer for CHP), the 
other occupants of V1 were believed to be D1 Saylor’s wife, , brother in law, , and 
daughter, .  I was informed a positive identification would only be possible at a later date, 
pending the results from an autopsy.  This information will be encompassed in Investigator Buckley’s report.   
 
Passenger,  (09-01739) was removed from V1 at about 0035 hours.   was found in the 
front passenger seat.  A preliminary finding at the scene from Investigator Buckley suggested  
succumbed to extensive blunt force injuries.  Formal cause of death and identification would be revealed at a 
later date post autopsy.      
 
Passenger,  (09-01741) was removed from V1 at about 0035 hours.  a was found in the 
right rear passenger seat.  A preliminary finding at the scene from Investigator Buckley suggested  
succumbed to extensive blunt force injuries.  Formal cause of death and identification would be revealed at a 
later date post autopsy.   
 
Passenger,  (09-01740) was removed from V1 at 0104 hours.  was found in the left rear 
passenger seat.  A preliminary finding at the scene from Investigator Buckley suggested  succumbed to 
extensive blunt force injuries.  Formal cause of death and identification would be revealed at a later date post 
autopsy.  
 
V1, a white 2009 Lexus ES350 ), was located on its wheels, and fully engulfed in flame.  Santee 
Fire Department personnel arrived and extinguished the fire. Fire Personnel later confirmed there were four 
occupants inside and presumed deceased.  V1 was at its uncontrolled point of rest in the open river bottom, 
approximately 154 feet north of Mission Gorge Road.  It sustained major damage throughout, with the greatest 
area of intrusion at the entire front end and roof area.   
 
Due to the fire, V1 sustained a great amount of burn damage over most of its interior and exterior.  Any 
mechanical affects that may have been present were not identified at that time.  It was later deemed the restraint 
system to V1 was intact, functioning, and engaged per reports from the ME, Santee Fire Department, and CHP 
MAIT units.  Due to the burn damage to V1, the airbags that deployed could not be seen.  The airbag 
containment system appeared to have engaged at impact.       
 
Driver,  (D2 ), was identified with his valid California Driver’s License.  D2 was 
contacted at the time and location of the collision scene.  I observed D2  
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as he was seated in the driver seat of his 1983 Ford Explorer (V2), with his seat belt engaged and intact. 
 
D2  was transported to Sharp Memorial Hospital by Santee Fire Department, Medic #5 (FD).  D2  
was treated for soft tissue damage to his right shoulder and the back of his head.  He was released from the 
hospital on 08-30-09.   
 
V2, a red 1983 Ford Explorer ( , was located at its uncontrolled point of rest, on its wheels, within 
the north western portion of the intersection of Mission Gorge Road and SR 125.  V2 sustained major damage, 
with the right rear area having the greatest amount of intrusion.  Incidental damage included the buckling of the 
entire frame due to the force of impact.  The air bags had not deployed, and the restraint system to V2 was in 
full function and intact.  
 
STATEMENTS: 
 
OPINIONS AND CONLCLUSIONS: 
 
INVESTIGATION: 
 
In an attempt to determine the events that transpired before the collision, I spoke to Sergeant Mentink (13425) 
of CHP.  Sergeant Mentink is one of D1 Saylor’s supervisors.  Sergeant Mentink told me D1 Saylor’s most 
recent assignment was Special Duties School Bus Program Officer.  On 08-28-09, D1 Saylor reported to work 
at 4902 Pacific Highway in San Diego.  He was present at work that day, from 0530 hours to 1400 hours.   
 
Sergeant Mentink said there was nothing unusual or notable about his shift, other than that he brought V1 to 
work that day.  According to a Rental Agreement from Bob Baker Toyota/Lexus, D1  received V1 as a 
loaner car on 08-28-09 at 0935 hours.  V1 was due back to the dealership on the same day at 1730 hours.   
 
According to a friend and fellow CHP Officer, John Concepcion, D1  and his family were most likely on 
the way to Mahala’s soccer function before the collision occurred.  Officer Concepcion said this was the 
family’s usual practice for a Friday evening.   
 
At the time of this investigation, I had not spoken to family members of D1 .  Sergeant Mentink and an 
attorney for the family, John Gomez, advised it would be too upsetting and unnecessary.  I was advised the 
immediate families lived both out of town and out of the state, and had no pertinent information to provide. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Physical Evidence 
A supplemental report by CHP’s MAIT investigators includes the factual diagram portion of this report.  This 
report consists of a dynamics diagram, an environment diagram, a scene diagram, and physical evidence 
diagram.  
 
The physical evidence at the scene of the collision includes 39 points of evidence.  These points are documented 
on the “Physical Evidence Descriptions” portion of MAIT’s supplemental.  
 
Using the Accident Reconstruction Pro computer program, I used a time and distance calculation to obtain a 
minimum speed for V1.  I used the recorded 911 call from CHP to get a time of approximately 16 seconds from 
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a known landmark (vocalized by Passenger C. Lastrella) to the initial area of impact.  Using the 16 second time 
frame, I obtained a minimum speed of 112.8 MPH.   
 
I used incremental calculations from 12 seconds to 16 seconds to the initial area of impact.  Through these 
calculations I determined a range of between 112.8 MPH to 150.0 MPH for a minimum speed of V1.  The 
calculations are attached to this report.  
 
The Event Data Recorder (EDR) was recovered from V1.  The EDR sustained damage due to collision and the 
subsequent vehicle fire.  It is currently in Sheriff’s evidence at the Santee Patrol station.  On 11/30/09, Detective 
Duran transported the EDR to Los Angeles where Toyota technicians examined it for data.  They were unable 
to retrieve any data and suggested the EDR be sent to Japan for further examination.   
 
Other Factual Information: 
 
This investigation is a cooperative effort with the San Diego Sheriff’s Department (SDSD) as the lead 
investigating agency.  Other agencies include CHP’s MAIT units (Scott Parent #16159, Justin Snider #15406, 
and Kevin Hearst #A08219), the Office of The Medical Examiner (ME, Investigator Buckley #14), and the U.S. 
Department of Transportation National Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA, Investigator Stephen 
McHenry and Federal Engineer William Collins).  Supplemental reports from these supporting agencies are 
attached to this investigation. 
 
Deputy Moeller (2838) assisted with a blood draw.  Deputy Collier (1519) assisted with scene control and 
witness statements.  Deputy Burkhart (1870) assisted with scene control, scene documentation, witness 
statements, and digital images.  Sergeant Goldberg (1110) assisted with supervision of the scene.  Deputy 
Tucker (6963) assisted with scene control and containment.  Deputy Knowles (4856) assisted with evidence 
collection and scene control.  Corporal Spears (5632) assisted with scene control and witness statements.  
Sergeant Hill (1186) assisted with witness statements, and scene supervision.  Please see their attached 
Deputy’s Reports (DR) documenting their involvement. 
 
 
 
Captain B. Eldridge (FD) assisted by providing audio evidence.  The CD documents 911 calls to the FD’s 
communications center.  The CD was placed into Sheriff’s evidence at the Santee Patrol Station.         
 
Investigation (cont.): 
 
On 08-28-09 at about 1835 hours, I was on patrol in the city of Santee.  At about 1837 hours, I was monitoring 
the air when I heard a call of a grass fire in the field near Mission Gorge and State Route 125 North.  Seconds 
later, it was dispatched there may be a car in the field.  Believing there may have been a collision; I asked 
SDSD dispatch to put me on the radio call.     
 
On the way, it was dispatched there may be at least one person inside the vehicle.  At that point I advised I 
would be en route via a Code 3 emergency response.  Additionally I was advised law enforcement was already 
on scene.  Deputies from the SDSD began arriving on scene at about 1839 hours.  I arrived at approximately 
1840 hours. 
 
When I arrived I saw a very thick and dark cloud of smoke in the open field/ river bottom area just north of 
Mission Gorge Road, where it intersects with SR 125 N.  Deputy Moeller and I arrived at the same time and ran 
into the field in the direction of the smoke.   
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Corporal Spears, who arrived seconds before me, advised us there were four inside the burning vehicle.  Deputy 
Moeller and I continued into the field and found a vehicle (V1) fully engulfed in flames.  I could see at least one 
person in the right rear passenger seat, partially ejected from the back seat.  Given the severity of the scene I 
witnessed, and the extent of vehicle damage, I believed the occupant I saw had not survived.  I attempted to 
locate a plate on V1 because at this point it was still not formally identified.  I was unable to locate a plate.      
 
Deputy Burkhart arrived immediately after I did and began photographing the collision scene.  Deputies 
Moeller, Knowles, and I began to check the field area for the possibility that bodies may have been ejected.  
None were found.  I began telling civilians around V1 to immediately leave the field.  I attempted to leave the 
area and found I was almost surrounded by fire.   
 
As I assessed my surroundings for safe way out of the field, I could see vehicle parts scattered a great distance 
around V1.  I later learned the debris field around V1 was greater than 80 feet in diameter.  At about 1844 
hours, the FD (units 4, 26, 34, 5S, and medic unit 5) arrived.  FD units were able to assist me in finding a safe 
path from the brush fire for myself, civilians in the immediate area, and Deputy Moeller.   
 
I notified Sergeant Hill and Lieutenant Bolwerk and advised them of the magnitude of the incident..  At about 
1845 hours, I requested assistance with documentation and reconstruction of what I now considered a major 
collision scene.  Deputy Burkhart  
 
 
coordinated an air support unit to photograph the scene.  Sergeant Goldberg arrived to oversee operations until 
Sergeant Hill arrived.       
 
Deputies, Tucker, Collier, Knowles, Moeller and Corporal Spears all began to gather information concerning 
potential witnesses. They obtained contact information from witnesses then released them from the scene.  At 
that time, witnesses were advising V1 was a white Lexus seen speeding in excess of 100 MPH while it was on 
SR 125 N.   
 
Corporal Spears contacted a witness, (off duty)  ( ).  Corporal Spears gathered 
information to contact  at a later date.   was said to be one of the first 
witnesses on scene and attempted to assist the occupants of V1.   statement is documented on 
a DR by Sergeant Hill. 
 
I contacted a unit from the San Diego Police Department, Officer J. Dragt (6168) who was the first law 
enforcement unit on scene.  Officer Dragt had been standing by with the driver (D2) of a Ford Explorer (V2) 
that had been hit by V1 before it landed in the field.  The following is Officer Dragt’s statement: 
 
Statement of witness, Officer Julie Dragt (SDPD #6168): 
 
Officer Dragt was contacted at the time and location of the collision.  Officer Dragt was the first law 
enforcement official on scene.  Officer Dragt was on her way back to her beat from Las Colinas Detention 
Facility when she noticed smoke and flames in the area of the San Diego river bottom to the north.   
 
Officer Dragt was west bound on Mission Gorge Road, in the number one left turn lane for south bound SR 
125.  Ahead of her in the intersection she noticed an SUV (V2) with major rear end damage.  Officer Dragt 
began to think the fire she observed could possibly be related to the collision.   
 
Officer Dragt pulled over to see if she could lend assistance to the driver of V2.  As she located and attended to 
the driver (D2 Pretty), she was being flagged by people on scene that there was a vehicle in the river bottom 
(V1).  By this time, Deputies from the SDSD began arriving.  Officer Dragt assisted Deputies in clearing 
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witnesses from the area of immediate hazard near the river bottom.  It was then she received additional 
information from witnesses that there were people inside V1 and that they were all deceased.   
 
With Deputies on scene, Officer Dragt stayed at V2 to keep a close eye on D2   D2  did not appear 
to have any visible injury as a result of the collision however he was not very responsive.  Officer Dragt noticed 
a strong odor of beer from the inside of V2.  She looked around inside the vehicle and could see grocery bags 
and broken beer bottles.  She did not think D2 was under the influence but did not conduct any type of 
evaluation to that affect.  Officer Dragt remained on scene to assist the Sheriff’s Office. 
 
 
 
Investigation (cont.): 
 
I approached V2 which was in the intersection of Mission Gorge Road and the off ramp from SR 125 N.  I 
found D2,  seated in the driver seat of V2.  There was a strong odor of beer inside V2 and I 
could see broken bottles of beer inside.  It appeared D2  had been grocery shopping as there were other 
food items scattered within V2.  D2  was conscious but not responsive and appeared to be in shock.  
Medics from unit #5 began to prepare D2  for transport to Sharp Memorial Hospital.  At that time I left 
Officer Dragt and Medic 5 to attend to D2    
 
At about 1848 hours, Community Service Officer’s Wieboldt (3187), Bradfield (6249), Bumbar (3368), and 
Weaver (7042) took control of Mission Gorge Road and shut it down to all east and west bound traffic.  The 
Officer’s shut down Mission Gorge Road from Fanita Drive to about a quarter of a mile west of SR 125.  All 
traffic from SR 125 was diverted east bound, and all east bound traffic west of the intersection was diverted 
onto SR 125 S.   
 
At 1850 hours, the FD advised V1 was occupied by four passengers, all confirmed deceased.  At this time units 
from the California Highway Patrol (CHP) arrived in response to a 911 call they received moments before the 
collision.  The 911 caller was said to be an occupant of V1 and was reporting speeds in excess of 100 MPH 
because of a stuck accelerator.  CHP units and I discussed the jurisdiction of the collision.  It was determined 
the collision occurred in Sheriff’s jurisdiction.  CHP remained to assist.  I was later provided a copy of the 911 
recording.  It has been placed into Sheriff’s evidence at the Santee Patrol Station. 
 
At 1856 hours, SDPD air support “ABLE” arrived and began photo documentation of the scene from above and 
to check the area for possible ejected victims.  Ultimately, no other victims outside V1 were found.  At about 
1909 hours, Deputy Knowles stated he found the license plate of V1 in the debris field.  Dispatch was advised 
of the plate information and informed units on scene V1 was a 2009 Lexus sedan registered to Bob Baker 
Lexus.  Deputy Knowles was instructed to go to the dealership at 1000 Arnele Avenue in the City of El Cajon to 
determine who the driver of V1 was. 
 
At approximately 1919 hours, D2 Pretty was transported to Sharp Memorial Hospital by Medic 5.  Because of 
the odor of beer inside V2, I asked for a phlebotomist to meet D2 Pretty at the hospital for a blood draw.  
Deputy Moeller agreed to oversee the blood draw and followed D2 Pretty to the hospital.   
 
Investigator Burton (23) from the San Diego County Medical Examiner’s Office arrived at 1930 hours to begin 
the extrication process of the occupants of V1.  Because the scene documentation had not yet begun, 
Investigator Burton was told to return later. 
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Nurse Robinson (852) of American Forensic Nurses met Deputy Moeller at the hospital.  Nurse Robinson drew 
two samples of D2 Pretty’s blood at 2008 hours.  Deputy Moeller’s Deputy’s Report documents his 
involvement.  Deputy Moeller recorded his involvement with D2 Pretty.  The audio CD was placed into 
Sheriff’s evidence at the Santee Patrol Station.   
 
Deputy Knowles returned to the collision scene from Bob Baker Lexus at about 2009 hours.  Deputy Knowles 
informed me the driver of V1 (D1) was a CHP Officer, Mark Saylor.  D1 Saylor had earlier been loaned V1 by 
the dealership.  CHP Officer’s on scene were notified.  Deputy Knowles’ DR documents his involvement in this 
investigation.   
 
At 2018 hours, a “sig alert” was put into place in response to the road closures in the area.  Sergeant Hill and 
Lieutenant Bolwerk arrived on scene and were briefed on the incident thus far.  At 2059 hours, I was advised by 
Deputy Moeller that he placed D2 Pretty’s blood sample into the evidence refrigerator at Las Colinas Detention 
Facility in Santee.     
 
At 2121 hours, Sergeant Budwine from CHP arrived on scene and was aware D1 Saylor was a CHP Officer.  
Because of the multiple fatality aspect, Sgt. Hill requested the assistance from the CHP’s Multidisciplinary 
Accident Investigation Team (MAIT).  It was later determined they would be handling the scene 
documentation, via their GPS generated factual diagramming system.  MAIT arrived at 2133 hours and began 
their documentation.  MAIT’s report will be attached to this investigation and placed into Sheriff’s evidence.    
 
Investigator Buckley (14) from the Medical Examiner’s Office (ME) arrived on scene at 2142 hours.  Deputy 
Wallace (4579) and Officer Wieboldt assisted at approximately 2148 hours, by placing spot light equipment to 
illuminate the scene.  In an effort to allow the MAIT team to accurately depict the scene, Investigator Buckley 
agreed to wait before he and the FD began the extrication process of the occupants of V1. 
 
As the investigation progressed, I was advised a witness to the collision was on scene and wanted to give me a 
statement.  At about 2230 hours, I met with Witness Corie A. Heller.  The following is her statement: 
 
Statement of (witness), : 
 
Witness  was contacted the night of the collision, at about 2230 hours.  She initially observed V1 while 
she was stopped at a red light on Mission Gorge Road.  Witness  went home but returned to the scene a 
few hours later to give a witness statement.   
 
Witness  was stopped on Mission Gorge Road in the east bound number two lane.  She was first in line 
and stopped at a red light.  Witness  thought the light for the left turn lane from SR 125 N for west bound 
Mission Gorge Road turned green because  
 
 
 
she saw a red Ford Explorer (V2) beginning a left turn.  Witness  remembered V2 was the only vehicle in 
the left turn lanes.   
 
V2 advanced toward the middle of the intersection when Witness  noticed a “white blur” (V1).  That was 
when she saw this “white blur” slam into the rear of V2.  Witness could not say how fast V1 was 
traveling but said, “It was as fast as I’ve ever seen a car go”.  She said as V2 was pushed farther into the 
intersection, she saw V1 “go up in the air” then disappear.   
 
Witness  heard an explosion then saw fire.  She recalled the fire seemed to die down, but there was a lot 
of smoke in the field to the north.  When she looked back at V2 she did not see anyone inside it.  Witness  
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was extremely shaken by what she had just seen and said she just wanted to go home to her kids.  She came 
back later because she thought her statement may be important. 
 
Investigation (cont.): 
 
MAIT units advised me I could inform the ME’s Office, they could begin the extrication process.  Investigator 
Buckley began at 2356 hours.  I was present when Investigator Buckley began taking the bodies from V1.  
Personnel from the FD advised the driver side seat belt was intact, engaged, and appeared functional.  D1 Mark 
Saylor was removed from the driver’s seat of V1 on 08-29-09 at 0022 hours (09-01737).  D1 Saylor was 
identified by Investigator Buckley with the California Driver License and CHP ID card he found in V1.  
Investigator Buckley found the wallet partially melted into the driver seat underneath D1 Saylor.   
 
Investigator Buckley made the preliminary determination that all occupants of V1 had extensive blunt force 
injuries to their bodies.  Additionally, extensive thermal injury occurred with all four occupants.  Investigator 
Buckley’s Investigative Report documents specific detail regarding time of death, trauma, and means of 
identification of all occupants.  Investigator Buckley determined the time of death for the occupants of V1 to be 
at 1839 hours.  The official ME’s report has been placed into Sheriff’s evidence.    
 
Just after the extrication process, Sergeant Hill and Lieutenant Bolwerk made their final survey and assessment 
of the scene.  Sergeant Hill left Santee Traffic Investigators and MAIT to continue and ultimately finalize scene 
processing.   
 
At the request of the MAIT team, Miller’s Towing arrived to take both V1 and V2 from the scene at 
approximately 0350 hours.  MAIT requested possession of the vehicles pending the completion of their 
investigation.  MAIT units continued their investigation by taking photos and collecting physical evidence from 
the scene.  At about 0400 hours, MAIT’s portion of the scene documentation was complete.   
 
 
 
 
Santee Public Works employees were notified at approximately 0420 hours, to assist with clearing Mission 
Gorge Road to allow for through traffic.  Additionally, Santee Patrol units and Santee Senior Volunteer units 
volunteered to assist with equipment pick up and transport back to Santee Station 50.  At about 0520 hours, 
Mission Gorge was cleared for normal traffic. 
 
Investigation (cont.) 08-29-09: 
 
D2  was first contacted at the time and location of the collision.  No statement was obtained at that time as 
D2  was transported by Santee Medic 5 to Sharp Memorial Hospital.   
 
D2  was contacted later that evening (08-28-09) by Deputy Moeller (2838) at Sharp Memorial Hospital.  
D2  was able to communicate to Deputy Moeller where he was coming from before the collision 
occurred.  At that time, D2 Pretty could not recall much about the collision.  Deputy Moeller’s Deputy’s Report 
(DR) is attached to this report.  See his DR for more information.  I obtained the following statement from D2 
Pretty at Sharp Memorial Hospital: 
 
Statement of driver,  (D2): 
 
I contacted D2  on 08-29-09 at about 2030 hours, at Sharp Memorial Hospital.  On 08-28-09 at about 
1830 hours, D2  was traveling north on SR 125.  He arrived at the end of SR 125 N and entered the 
number one left turn lane for west bound Mission Gorge Road.  D2  was stopped at the red light.   
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D2  told me he was surprised by the fact there was little traffic as he was stopped and waiting for his light 
to turn green.  He was the only vehicle in the turn lanes, and there was little traffic in front of him or near him.  
D2  light turned green and he slowly began his left turn.  D2  later recalled the impact he felt was 
that of V1 hitting his vehicle.  He remembered nothing after the collision.   
 
D2 y did not know where V1 came from but thought it was behind him.  The only thing significant to D2 

was that the traffic was so light at the time.  I asked D2  if he remembered talking to Deputy 
Moeller the previous evening.  He said he did and remembered consenting to a blood draw.  I asked him if he 
knew why I had Deputy Moeller take blood evidence from him.    
 
D2  said he did not know why his blood was drawn.  I told him when I contacted him at the scene; there 
were broken bottles of “Newcastle” beer in his vehicle (V2).  I told him the odor of beer was very strong.  D2 

 laughed and told me he rarely drinks.  He had just purchased the beer for a friend’s birthday party the 
following day.  D2  said he had not had anything to drink that night and said he had just been grocery 
shopping on the way home from work. 
 
 
Investigation (cont.): 
 
D2  asked me to contact Miller’s Towing so he would be able to retrieve personal property from V2.  I 
told him I would do that for him, and when he was ready, he could meet me and I would return his CDL to him. 
 
D2  was released from Sharp Memorial Hospital on 08-30-09.  Nurse Leslie informed me D2  was 
seen and treated by Dr. Frey.  D2 had no fractures as a result of the collision, and sustained 
predominately soft tissue damage.  He had pain in his left shoulder, and to the left side of the back of his head.  
 
Staff at Sharp Memorial Hospital informed me only time would dictate any further or future impact this 
collision will have on D2 .  Attached to this report is a Medical Records Release form signed by D2 

.  D2  has given the San Diego Sheriff’s Department, permission to access his medical records for 
purposes of this investigation.  The form was placed into Sheriff’s evidence.       
 
On 08-31-09, D2 came to the Santee Patrol Station to pick up his CDL.  Community Service Officer 
Clevenger (0920) located the CDL and retuned it to him.  A report from the San Diego Sheriff’s Crime Lab 
indicated D2 Pretty’s blood sample revealed there was no indication of alcohol in his system.  Alcohol was not 
a factor in D2 Pretty’s involvement in this incident and will not be pursued as such in this investigation.       
 
I obtained the names and contact information of potential witnesses from Deputies who assisted the night of the 
collision.  These witnesses either saw V1 on SR 125 N just before the collision, or saw the actual collision occur 
at the end of SR 125 where it intersects with Mission Gorge Road.  On 09-02-09, I began interviewing these 
witnesses by phone.  Their statements are as follows:   
 
Statement of (witness), : 
 
Witness , was contacted at the time and location of the collision.  She gave a statement to 
Deputy Collier (1519).  Witness  told Deputy Collier she saw a white Lexus (V1) “surging as if it was 
out of gas”.  See Deputy Collier’s DR attached to this report.  I contacted Witness  by phone on 09-02-09 
at 1745 hours.  The following is her statement: 
 
Witness  was north bound on SR 125 at about 1830 hours.  She was in the number one (“fast lane”) near 
Grossmont College Drive when she noticed “a white Lexus” (V1) in front of her.  Witness Sarrow noticed V1 
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because it was traveling “very slow”.  I asked her if she could estimate the speed of V1.  She said V1 was 
traveling at 45 – 50 MPH.   
 
Witness  slowed down behind V1.  She noticed V1 was “full of people”.  Witness  wanted to 
change lanes to get around V1 but had to wait for all the traffic behind  
 
 
her to pass before she could make her move.  While waiting to change lanes, Witness  thought V1 was 
having “car trouble” or it “ran out of gas”.   
 
Witness  was able to change lanes.  Because she thought V1 was having “car trouble” she continued 
looking at V1 in her rear view mirror.  She watched as V1 pulled over to the right side shoulder of SR 125 N.  
V1 continued traveling at about 40 – 45 MPH on the shoulder.  Witness Sarrow thought V1 was going to exit at 
Navajo Road.   She lost sight of it as she continued north.   
 
About “30 or 40 seconds later”, V1 passed her.  Witness  does not know which lane it was in, but she 
was positive it was V1.  V1 passed her with its emergency flashers on and was traveling at what she thought 
was greater than 100 MPH.  Witness  said, “I’ve never seen a car go that fast”.  Witness  arrived 
at the end of SR 125 N at Mission Gorge Road and saw a collision scene.  Witness  said she knew it was 
V1 because it could not possibly have slowed down enough to stop.   
 
Witness  later recalled there were not many cars on SR 125 N at the time she first saw V1.  She did not 
remember ever seeing it weave in and out of traffic or surging, nor did she remember hearing any skidding, 
braking, or high engine revving.  She did not recall anything unusual regarding the occupants of V1.    
 
Statement of (witness), :  
 
Witness,  was contacted by phone 0n 09-03-09 at about 1136 hours.  Witness  noticed V1 
when she was driving on SR 125 N on 08-28-09 at about 1800 hours.  Witness  did not realize the nature 
of her observations until she later saw news reports of the incident.  Witness  felt it was necessary to call 
the Sheriff’s Department to report her observations.   
 
Witness  was traveling north on SR 125 N at about 1800 hours on 08-28-09.  Witness  was in the 
number two lane when she noticed “a white four door” (V1) on the right hand shoulder of the freeway.  V1 had 
its emergency flasher’s on and was traveling north on the shoulder, at about 25 MPH.  Witness  said her 
observations were in the area just north of the Grossmont College/Navajo Road exit off the freeway, near the 
Oleander bushes.   
 
Witness said she saw “a puff of dark smoke” near the front end of V1.  She saw two males seated inside 
V1; a driver and a back seat passenger.  Witness  did not think any thing more than vehicle problems were 
occurring so she continued on her way. 
 
About 45 seconds to a minute later, Witness  noticed the same vehicle she had just seen on the shoulder.  
She said it was the same one because it still had its emergency flasher’s on.  V1 passed her traveling “at least 80 
– 90 MPH”.  Witness  quickly lost  
 
 
 
sight of it but looked over at the 52 west bound on ramp to see if V1 exited there.  She did not see it on the on 
ramp.   
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Witness  arrived at the end of 125 N and noticed an SUV (V2), and what she said was a brush fire.  She 
turned west bound on Mission Gorge Road to see if there was anyone inside V2.  Witness did not see 
anyone inside V2.  She left the scene at that point.   
 
The following Monday (08-31-09) while she was at work, and later from news reports, she wondered whether 
her observations were related to the fatal collision the news was reporting.  While watching the news she saw a 
“white car” that looked like the one she had seen on the freeway a couple days before.  Witness  called 
Detective Drake (SDSD #0961) to report her statement.  After I contacted her, Witness  realized what she 
had witnessed that day.      
 
 I asked Witness  what she noticed about V1 while it was on the freeway.  She did not notice it swerving 
or weaving.  She did not notice brake lights but said the emergency flashers were on.  She did not notice any tire 
screeching, engine acceleration noise, nor did she notice any lunging or bucking while in motion.  She said V1 
was traveling at a high rate of speed when it passed her.  The only other thing she thought was unusual at the 
time was that there did not seem to be a lot of traffic given the time of day.  
 
Investigation (cont.): 
 
Additional phone interviews were conducted by Deputy Burkhart on 09-02-09.  Deputy Burkhart spoke to 
Witnesses .  All three witnesses reported seeing V1 at the 
terminus of SR 125 N.  All three witnesses saw the collision occur.  Deputy Burkhart’s DR documents his 
interviews.    
 
On 09-03-09 at approximately 1230 hours, Sergeant Hill and I, along with MAIT Officers Parent, Snider, 
Hearst, NHTSA representatives, William Collins and Stephen McHenry, went to Miller’s Towing to inspect 
V1.  Reports from NHTSA and MAIT document specific findings regarding V1.  Additionally, Sergeant Hill’s 
DR regarding his involvement in the inspection will be included with my report.  Photos of V1 incident to this 
inspection are in Sheriff’s evidence.   
 
At the time of this meeting, Officer’s Parent and Snider gave me an audio CD copy of CHP’s 911 recording of 
the events that occurred while V1 was in motion and terminated with the collision.  Passenger  
can be heard communicating with the CHP’s communication center.  This is where Passenger a makes 
the statement about V1’s accelerator being stuck.  The CD was placed into Sheriff’s evidence at the Santee 
Patrol Station.   
 
 
 
 
V1 sustained catastrophic damage from severe frontal impact, roof impact, side impact and fire damage.  The 
Event Data Recorder (EDR) was recovered from V1 by Sergeant Hill.  And later placed into Sheriff’s evidence 
at the Santee Patrol Station.         
 
Upon inspection of the driver side floor board, an all weather floor mat (AWFM) was found intact and sustained 
relatively little damage from the vehicle fire.  The AWFM was removed from V1.  The AWFM had the two 
manufactured holes present at the bottom of the mat.  These holes are placed to accommodate two plastic 
retaining clips.  In removing the mat, it was discovered the retaining clips were not secured to the mat.  The mat 
appeared to have been pushed forward.  Whether this was incident to the impact, or whether it was in that 
condition before impact was not determined.      
 
The right side plastic retaining clip was secured to the floor board by a metal grommet, but again, not to the 
mat.  The left side retaining clip was found loose, and underneath the AWFM.  The AWFM is a Lexus product, 
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but not specific to V1, an ES350 sedan.  The part number stamped on the mat (PT 48050 PT908-48060 Front 
Driver>TPF<170), as indicated in both MAIT’s and NHTSA’s reports, states the mat is made for a Lexus 
RX400H SUV.   
 
When the AWFM was removed, it was discovered the accelerator pedal had melted and fused to the upper right 
hand corner of the mat.  The pedal and mat were removed from V1 at the same time.  The pedal is a rigid, one 
piece, plastic form.  The main pivot point of the pedal was operational, smooth, and unencumbered in its 
motion.  The AWFM originally removed from V1 is in Sheriff’s evidence at the Santee Patrol Station.  It should 
be noted the driver side seat belt was intact and engaged.   
  
The left front wheel and suspension were torn from V1 upon impact.   Consequently, the wheel assembly 
sustained no fire damage.  V1’s rotors showed signs they were heated and discolored.  The surfaces were rough 
with deposits from brake pad material.  The rotors showed signs of oxidation consistent with extended and 
endured braking.  The brake pads were rough, melted and bubbled.  The brake calipers were also discolored 
from the heat of aggressive braking. 
 
CHP Motor Carrier Specialist Kevin Hearst (MAIT) made the preliminary assessment that these were signs 
indicative of constant and endured braking and not fire damage.  Officer Hearst conducted an additional, more 
thorough inspection of the brakes, rotors, pads, calipers, and wheel assemblies at a later date.  His final report 
documents this extensively.   
 
Investigation (cont.): 
 
On 09-10-09 at approximately 1400 hours, I obtained a statement from Witness .  Witness 

 was on scene the day of the collision.  I originally  
 
 
 
attempted to contact Witness  on 09-05-09 by phone.  I was unable to contact him and left a message.  
Witness  returned my call at this date and time.   
 
Statement of (witness), :  
 
Witness, , was contacted at the time and location of the collision, and left his name and 
number to a responding Sheriff’s unit on scene.  On 09-10-09 at about 1400 hours, I contacted Witness  
by phone.  He gave me the following statement: 
 
Witness was on west bound Mission Gorge Road.  He was stopped at a red light in the number three 
lane about 3 – 4 cars back from the intersection.  Witness Schultz heard a loud crash and saw a very fast “blur” 
in front of him in the intersection.  At first he said, it was so fast he did not know what it was.  Witness  
noticed “fire in front of it”, then realized it was “a car on fire” (V1). 
 
V1 went up in the air, hit a fence, hit an embankment, and then rolled into the field to the north.  Witness 

 pulled over as soon as he was able.  He got out and ran into the field.  Further into the field, he noticed 
V1 resting on its wheels.  There was a fire in the engine area of V1.  He also noticed the field around V1 was on 
fire.    
 
Witness  was standing near the driver side of V1.  He could see what he thought were two people in the 
front passenger compartment of V1.  Witness  was sure the occupants he saw were not alive because of 
the impact, and now because of the fire spreading to the rest of the car.  Witness  could see what looked 
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like a larger than normal “hand” where the windshield should be.  He thought he could see “a man’s face” near 
what was left of the windshield.   
 
Witness  said there was another person in the front passenger seat.  He said there was no way to get 
access to the car because of the fire and the damage to V1.  He said a female Deputy was yelling for him to get 
away from V1.  Witness  knew there was nothing he could do.  He left the area and waited to talk to 
responding Deputies.      
 
Investigation (cont.): 
 
On 09-17-09 at approximately 1415 hours, Sergeant Hill and I met with staff at the Bob Baker Toyota/Lexus 
dealership at 1000 Arnele St. in El Cajon.  I met with Vice President and General Manager David Ezratty and 
Service Advisor Joshua Kinghorn.  Through these individuals, I learned the general procedure concerning 
Lexus loaner vehicles. 
 
A brand new Lexus arrives at a given date and time to the dealership and is designated a “loaner car”.  The 
arrival of a loaner is documented as received on a Memorandum Invoice.  A car will be used as a loaner car for 
one year.  After one year it will be sold as a used car.  The loaner car originally comes in with new carpet style 
mats.  The carpet  
 
 
style mats are not installed inside the vehicle but kept in the trunk at the time of delivery.  The carpet mats are 
stored pending the sale of the loaner vehicle as a used car.  At that time, the carpet mats are included with the 
vehicle.    
 
While the car is being used as a loaner, rubber all weather floor mats (AWFM) previously stored at the 
dealership, are placed in the car.  The AWFM’s are vehicle specific.  There are AWFM’s for the Lexus ES350 
sedans and the Lexus SUV’s.  The mat specific to the vehicle is installed in the corresponding car.  I was 
advised the mats are never intermixed.    
 
I learned the following about the Lexus ES350, detailing practices, customer complaint, and maintenance 
protocol, procedures for checking loaner vehicles in and out to customers, and in and out of service: 
 
Loaner vehicle check in/out process: 
 
This can be done both during business hours and after hours.  Upon the return of a loaner car, the customer 
gives the keys to the Receptionist (There are only two Receptionist’s; one during business hours, and one after 
hours).  The Detail Specialist’s check with the Receptionist and find out which car needs to be detailed.   
 
If this is done during business hours, the Detail Specialist will service each car per a “Cleaning/Maintaining 
Loaner Cars” list of eight specific procedures.   The list is followed on a case by case basis.  For example, if the 
car comes in clean and free of debris, it may not necessarily receive all eight procedures on the list.  The process 
varies according to what condition the vehicle is retuned in.   
 
While the vehicle is being detailed, the all weather floor mats (AWFM) usually remain in the car and are 
vacuumed in place.  The AWFM’s may be removed if soiled, but then they are returned and clipped into place.  
 
If the loaner car is checked in after hours, the customer gives the keys to the after hours Receptionist.  The 
Receptionist places the keys in a lock box.  The Receptionist checks a hard copy file of invoices filed by 
customer name.  The invoice is later matched with the computer invoice and filed the next day by the Service 
Advisor under his or her name.   
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The Detail Specialist maintains an after hours physical listing of the cars that had been returned.  The loaner car 
is logged as checked in via a “Loaner Car Check In “sheet.  The Detail Specialist writes in the date, time, 
odometer reading, fuel level and his or her name on the sheet. 
 
The following day, the Service Advisor matches the physical list generated by the Detail Specialist to a 
computer generated list.  Any car unaccounted for is found in a specific location employees refer to as “the 
wall”.  If a vehicle is placed by “the wall”, it suggests service is needed.   
 
 
The only employee responsible for checking out a loaner vehicle is the Service Advisor.  The Receptionist only 
checks in the loaner cars.  Consequently, after hours transactions do not involve the checking out of loaner cars. 
This must be accomplished during business hours.  When a loaner car is checked out, the computer is checked 
for the customer’s reservation.  A Service Advisor gets the “smart” key (remote key fob), and if the customer is 
unfamiliar, may conduct a customer tutorial concerning operation of the push button ignition and key fob.   
 
In the event of a customer complaint regarding a loaner car, the Receptionist informs the Service Advisor 
during business hours.  If a complaint is received after hours, the Receptionist writes a note to the Service 
Advisor.  I was informed on that day, employees had not to this date, ever received any complaints regarding 
Lexus loaner cars.  Please see the following statements from Vice President David Ezratty, Service Advisor 
Joshua Kinghorn, after hours Receptionist Jessica Martin-Dunleavy, and Detail Specialist Octaviano Garcia Jr.:
 
Statements of (witnesses) at  Toyota/Lexus: 
 
Witness,  
 
Witness  was contacted at Bob Baker Lexus on 09-17-09.  Witness Ezratty is the Vice President of Bob 
Baker Lexus.  Witness Ezratty informed me a brand new Lexus is delivered to the dealership with carpet floor 
mats in the trunk.  They get put away so they don’t get dirty.  All weather floor mats are then placed in the 
vehicle.  The all weather mats for that make and model, which are stored in the detailing department, are placed 
in the vehicle.   
 
Witness Ezratty told me they do not mix and match the all weather mats.  He stated a mat for a Lexus SUV 
would not have been implemented in a sedan.  In fact, he explained, the SUV mat would not fit in a sedan.  The 
retaining clips that keep the mat from slipping only match the corresponding mat.  Witness Ezratty was 
confident they always put the right mat into the right vehicle.  
 
I asked Witness Ezratty about the procedure for the detailing of loaner vehicles.  He explained it depends on 
what the vehicle needs and what condition it is in when a customer returns it.  If the customer for example, only 
had it a few hours, it may receive a quick vacuum and be released back into the fleet.  If the customer has had it 
for several days, it may receive a full detail, which may include removal of the all weather floor mats.  Witness 
Ezratty referred me to his Detail Specialist, Octaviano Garcia for specifics on what detailing V1 received. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Witness,  
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Witness Kinghorn was contacted on 09-17-09 at Bob Baker Lexus.  Witness Kinghorn is a Service Advisor at 
the dealership.  Witness Kinghorn explained that one of his duties is to check the loaner vehicles out to 
customers.  Between himself, the Lot Attendant, and the Service Consultant, a tutorial on the operation of the 
loaner is conducted.  The instruction includes the operation of the “smart key” and the push button ignition.     
 
I asked Witness Kinghorn about the procedure for fielding customer complaints if one were to arise.  Witness 
Kinghorn said a complaint about any of the loaner vehicles is rare if not non existent.  In the instance of a 
complaint however, the customer would most likely inform the Receptionist who should inform him.  If he is 
not on duty, the cashier would write him a note and place it in his mailbox for inspection the following day.  
Witness Kinghorn advised me he had not ever received any complaints about V1.     
 
Witness,  
 
Witness Martin-Dunleavy was contacted on 09-17-09 at the Bob Baker Lexus dealership.  Witness Martin-
Dunleavy works as the evening Cashier/Receptionist in the Parts and Service Department.  Her hours are from 
1600 – 1900 Monday through Friday.   
 
Witness Martin-Dunleavy’s responsibilities include the checking in of Lexus loaner vehicle after hours.  In the 
instance a customer has had a problem with a loaner vehicle; Witness Martin-Dunleavy would let the Sales 
Manager know.   In the three months Witness Martin-Dunleavy has worked at Bob Baker Lexus, she had never 
received a complaint about any loaner vehicle. 
 
Witness Octaviano Garcia Jr. 
 
Witness Garcia was contacted on 09-17-09 at the Bob Baker Lexus dealership.  Witness Garcia is a Detail 
Specialist and has been so for about a year.  Witness Garcia remembered when V1 was returned on 08-27-09.  
 
One of Witness Garcia’s responsibilities includes checking the loaner vehicles for damage and detailing the 
vehicle.  The detail always includes at the very least, vacuuming the all weather floor mats.  If they are 
especially soiled, Witness Garcia will remove and clean the mats.  When this is necessary, he always makes 
sure the plastic clips are secured to the grommets on the floor mats.  Additionally, he makes sure the clips are 
attached to the mats.     
 
Witness Garcia remembered washing V1.  He said the mats just needed vacuuming.  He did not have to remove 
the mats.  Witness Garcia explained to me the extra diligence involved in making sure the mats are properly 
installed.  He explained this is a must due  
 
 
 
to the 2007 recall of the all weather floor mats.  Witness Garcia was positive he has never received a complaint 
about the ES350 in question.   
 
Investigation (continued): 
 
After going over loaner car procedures and interviewing employees, I was escorted to the area D1  
personal vehicle was being stored.  D1  personal vehicle is a 2006 Lexus IS250 (5UIW211).  As 
referenced by work order #163709, the IS250 was being serviced for a CD player “rear error”, a parking brake 
readjustment, and intermittent problems with dash and interior console lighting issues.   
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The IS250 has a “sport mode” gear shift system.  Additionally, the IS250 has a paddle shifting system mounted 
on the steering wheel.  This allows the driver to change gears both on the center console area and from the 
steering wheel.  The ES350 does not have the paddle shift feature.   
 
Both models however, have the push button ignition system.  D1  IS250 had an owner’s manual in the 
glove box.  It went into detail about the push button ignition and went so far as to explain the need to hold it for 
3 seconds to cut the engine while the car is in gear.  The manual recommends that doing this may cause an 
accident as the brakes and power steering may be affected. 
 
While at the dealership, Sergeant Hill and I looked at a new ES350 sedan.  The sedan had a vehicle specific 
AWFM in place on the driver side floor board.  Upon closer inspection, it appeared the pedal would not 
interfere with the vehicle specific mat.  Upon manipulation of the pedal, it cleared the AWFM every time it 
wasdepressed.   
 
Sgt. Hill asked for and was provided an AWFM for the Lexus RX400 SUV, the same type of mat found in the 
driver side floor board of V1.  Sgt. Hill removed the AWFM already inside the ES350 and replaced it with the 
SUV AWFM.  We found that not only did the mat fit the entire floor board, but the clips and grommets also line 
up with the holes on the AWFM.  Sgt. Hill was able to attach the mat to the clips on the floor board.          
 
Upon visual inspection of the SUV AWFM inside the ES350, we could see the mat filled the entire floor board 
area.  Sgt. Hill and I were able to see that the pedal would likely come into contact with the AWFM when 
depressed.  Sgt. Hill manipulated the pedal by hand.  Each time he depressed the pedal, it became trapped on 
one of the edges of the AWFM.  Not only did the pedal become trapped in the SUV mat, but it remained 
trapped.  Sergeant Hill took photos of our findings.  A CD of these photos is in Sheriff’s evidence at the Santee 
Patrol Station.  I concluded my investigation and interview of employees at Bob Baker Toyota/Lexus.   
 
By reviewing paper work provide to me by Witnesses Ezratty and Kinghorn, I later learned the following about 
V1’s history with Bob Baker Toyota/Lexus: 
 
 
V1 was a model 9000A 2009 Lexus ES350 four door sedan produced on 09-09-08.  Bob Baker Toyota/Lexus at 
1000 Arnele Avenue in El Cajon, CA received V1 on 10-13-08. The dealership designated V1 as unit #167 as 
can be seen on the invoices, work orders, and check in log.  On 10-15-08, V1 received a new car detail, and a 
pre delivery service per work order #153700.   
 
On 02-26-09, V1 received its personalized settings per invoice #157801.  On 04-29-09 and 04-30-09, V1 
received a 5000 mile service, a wheel alignment, and center console maintenance per invoice #159761.  On 06-
09-09, V1 was treated for odor control per invoice #160988.     
 
Included in this report is a reservation agreement #23372 which documents D1 Saylor’s reservation of V1 on 
08-28-09 at 0930 hours.  Additionally, there is a Rental Agreement that documents D1 Saylor’s contract as 
having received V1 at 0935 hours.  All Bob Baker Toyota/Lexus paperwork mentioned in this investigation is in 
Sheriff’s evidence.     
 
Among the paperwork I received from Bob Baker Toyota/Lexus, was a “History by Unit Report” documenting 
the last 14 customers to use V1 before D1   The report spans the time frame between 06-29-09 to 08-28-
09.  I later conducted phone interviews of the following customers:  Hanan Nisan, Marie Dearden, Delores 
Clague, and Wayne Lawyer.  The customer statements are as follows: 
 
Witness Marie Dearden: 
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Witness Dearden was contacted by phone on 09-30-09.  Witness Dearden had V1 on 08-26-09.  Witness 
Dearden’s personal vehicle is a 2007 Lexus ES350.  She said it was very similar in operation to V1.  She stated 
she did not have any problems with V1.  She drove it less than 50 miles, for a top speed of 50 MPH.  In her own 
car, she has carpet mats with a clear plastic mat stacked on top of it.  She was unsure what type of mat was in 
V1 at the time she had it. 
 
Witness, : 
 
Witness  was contacted by phone on 10-02-09.  Witness  is a customer of Bob Baker Lexus and was 
loaned V1 on 08-27-09.  Witness stated he did not have any problems with V1.  He drove it for one day.  
He traveled less than 100 miles and had reached the top speed of about 65 MPH.   
 
Witness own vehicle is a 2008 Lexus E350 that he brought to the dealership for general maintenance.  
According to Witness  V1 had rubber mats in it.  His own car has carpet mats which he has never had a 
problem with.   
 
Witness  has used loaner cars from Bob Baker Lexus about three times.  He has never had any problems.  
His vehicle has the push button ignition.  He did not know  
 
 
about the need to push the button for a steady three seconds to cut the engine while the car is in gear.  He did 
not receive any type of operational lessons at the dealership regarding V1.  
 
Witness : 
 
Witness  was contacted by phone on 10-02-09.  Witness had V1 on 08-19-09.  Witness  
personal vehicle is a 2007 Lexus LS460 sedan.  She brought it to the dealership for her 5000 mile service.  On 
08-19-09 Witness  was given V1 as a loaner.  She said for the one and a half days that she had it; she had 
no problems with it.   
 
Witness  said her vehicle and V1 were very similar in operation, including the push button ignition.  
Witness  was not sure what type if any mats were inside V1.  She drove V1 less than 100 miles and her 
top speed was 70 MPH.  I asked Witness  if she was given any type of tutorial from employees at the 
dealership reference the operation of V1.  She said she was not.  The only thing the dealership checked on V1 
was what condition it was in when she received it. 
 
Witness : 
 
Witness  was contacted by phone on 10-29-09.  Witness  is a customer of Bob Baker 
Toyota/Lexus and was loaned V1 on 08-20-09.  Witness  personal vehicle is a 2006 Lexus RX400H 
SUV.  He had it serviced by the dealership because of an unrelated power steering recall.  Witness  
SUV has carpet mats and does not have a push button ignition.  He had not had any problems with his personal 
Lexus.   
 
Witness  had V1 for one day and drove it less than ten miles.  His top speed while he had V1 was less 
than 40 MPH.  He cannot recall the type of floor mats in V1 and said he did not have any problems due to floor 
mat issues.  He has driven an ES350 before he used V1 and is familiar with it operation.  Witness  said 
he did not receive, nor did he need any extra instruction from employees of the dealership reference the use of 
an ES350 sedan.  Witness  said he did not have any problems with V1.   
 
Investigation (cont.): 
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Sergeant Hill advised me he was contacted by another customer, .  Mr.  is a customer of 
Bob Baker Toyota/Lexus and is one of the customer’s listed on the above mentioned “History by Unit Report”.  
Mr.  called Sergeant Hill and told him he had an unintended acceleration problem when used V1.  Mr. 

 told Sergeant Hill he mentioned the incident to the after hours Receptionist.  Sergeant Hill’s report 
references the statement he received from . 
 
I reviewed the statement I received from the after hours Receptionist, Witness Martin-Dunleavy.  Witness 

 did not mention Mr.  and said that there  
 
 
were no complaints involving V1 reported to her.  I contacted Witness  who agreed to meet me 
for an additional interview.  On 10-05-09 at approximately 1915 hours, I met Witness  at 
Starbuck’s (Magnolia Avenue and Bradley Avenue) in El Cajon.  I obtained the following statement: 
 
Statement of (witness),  
 
On 10-05-09, I asked Witness  to tell me what she did in the event a customer complained 
about a loaner vehicle.  She explained that in the event of a complaint, she lets the Detail Specialist know.  I 
showed Witness  a picture of one of her recent customers, .  I asked her if she 
knew who he was.  She said he looked familiar, but she did not think she knew him.  I told her he was a 
customer of Bob Baker Lexus and had occasion to use V1 as a loaner car.    
 
I asked Witness  if she remembered whether Mr.  complained about V1.  She again 
told me she did not specifically remember Mr. , so she did not remember if he complained about V1.  I 
asked her if she remembered any complaints at all about V1.   
 
Witness  said that about two days before the crash that killed the  family, she 
remembered an “older couple” came in and returned V1.  She said she was not sure if the “older couple” was 
Mr.  and his wife.  The male half of the couple told her “the floor mat made the car go full throttle”.  
 
I asked Witness  how she handled the complaint from “the older couple”.  She told me she 
advised the Detail Specialist on duty who was Witness .  Witness  was not 
sure what Witness Garcia did about the complaint.  She told me that in the three and a half months she has been 
employed by Bob Baker Toyota/Lexus in El Cajon, this is the first time she had ever received any complaint 
about a loaner Lexus. 
 
Investigation (cont.): 
 
I noted the differences between the statement Witness  gave me at the dealership and the one 
she gave me later at the Starbucks.  At the dealership, she stated she had never received any complaints about a 
loaner vehicle.  She also told me if she were to receive a complaint, it would be fielded by the Sales Manager.   
 
At the Starbucks, Witness  said she did in fact remember a complaint about V1 from an “older 
couple”.   Also in contrast, was whether complaints were fielded by the Service Advisor, the Sales Manager or 
the Detail Specialist.  Specifically, Witness  said she told Witness Garcia about the complaint 
from Mr. .  Witness Garcia is a Detail Specialist.     
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On 10-7-09 at approximately 1530 hours, I contacted Witness  by phone.  Witness  gave 
me the following statement: 
 
Statement of (witness) : 
 
Witness  was a customer of Bob Baker Lexus in El Cajon on 08-24-09.  Witness  explained he 
owns a 2006 Lexus IS250 that was being serviced for a routine maintenance check.  While he waited for his 
car’s service, he had occasion to use V1 as a loaner.  He had V1 for two days (08-24-09 – 08-25-09) and put 
approximately 80 – 100 miles on it.  The top speed he achieved with V1 was between 80 – 85 MPH.   
 
Witness  told me about an incident he had regarding V1.  He was on the Poway Road on-ramp to 
Interstate 15 North.  As he was merging onto the freeway, he saw a truck nearby and accelerated “briskly” to 
get in front of it.  Witness  got onto the freeway, and once in front of the truck, let his foot off the 
accelerator.  V1 kept accelerating on its own, to about 80 – 85 MPH.   
 
Witness  stepped on the brakes and tried to lift up on the accelerator with his right foot.  He was 
attempting to access the shoulder of the freeway, and still applying the brakes, was able to slow V1 to about 50 
– 60 MPH.  While he was slowing, he pushed the ignition button “a few times” and was not able to turn the 
engine off.  He also “popped the throttle” with his foot to see if he could get it to clear itself.  None of this 
worked.  V1 kept moving at an uncontrolled and high rate of speed.       
 
Witness  kept on the brakes, slowing V1 to 25 – 30 MPH and pulled over to the shoulder.  He was able 
to then place V1 into neutral with the gear shift.  When he did this, the engine made a very loud whining, racing 
sound.  Witness  was able to stop V1.   
 
Witness  looked down at his feet and saw the accelerator was stuck underneath the floor mat.  He was 
able to pull it up with his foot, and said he had to apply a significant amount of pressure to do so.  He then 
reached down and pulled the mat back and away from the accelerator.  The mat was pushed forward.  Witness 

 did not think it was clipped because he was able to move the mat.  After clearing the mat, he continued 
driving with no other problems.     
 
I asked Witness  to tell me about his own car, and how familiar he was with the Lexus product.  He has 
never had any problems with his own Lexus.  Witness  said he has a “sport shift” in his car that he never 
uses.  I asked him if sport mode could easily be confused for normal mode.  He said he did not think so because 
it is a deliberate effort to have to pull the shifter to the left to activate.   
 
 
 
 
 
Witness  has never had all weather floor mats in his own car.  I asked him if he thought the mats in V1 
were the mats specific to the ES350.  He told me he did not know, but that the mats were “a big heavy rubber 
mat” in place “to protect the car better”.   
 
I asked Witness  about his use of the push button ignition when he tried to cut the engine of V1.  He 
explained he pushed the button in a series of intermittent successions.  I asked him if he ever pushed and held 
the ignition to turn off V1.  He said he did not.  I asked him if he was aware of the practice of holding the button 
for at least three seconds to cut the engine while the car is in gear.  He said he was not.   
 
As far as his braking of V1, Witness Bernard explained he did not “pump” the brakes.  He used steady constant 
pressure and was able to slow V1.  He said he pressed hard and steady and ultimately was able to stop V1.   
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I asked Witness  what transpired when he returned V1 to the dealership.  He said he and his wife 
returned V1 on 08-25-09 at about 1830 – 1900 hours.  He said a “young lady” (“less than 30 years old”) was the 
Receptionist at the time.  Witness  told the Receptionist about V1 and how it became “stuck in wide 
open position”.   
 
Witness  said he got the impression either the Receptionist did not understand him or just did not know 
what he meant.  He said at that point it made him “anxious” because he felt the matter was important.  Witness 

 explained to the Receptionist, “I think the mat caused it” and told her “you need to tell someone”.   
 
Witness  said the Receptionist told him to tell the Detail Specialist when his own car was returned to 
him.  He said he remembered retrieving his personal vehicle from a male “lot attendant” but could not describe 
him.  Witness  did not tell this other male employee what he told the Receptionist.  He assumed the 
Receptionist would let someone know.   
 
Investigation (cont.): 
 
V1 and V2 were both towed and held in the yard at Miller’s Towing, 1402 Pioneer Way in El Cajon, Ca.  V1 
and V2 were towed at the request of MAIT investigators.   At the request of MAIT, I arranged for V1 to be 
towed by the San Diego Sheriff’s Crime Lab, from Miller’s Towing to the San Diego Sheriff’s evidence yard 
(.43, 1840 Weld Boulevard, El Cajon, Ca.).  This transaction took place on 09-25-09.  V1 is currently in the 
Sheriff’s evidence yard, and will be released pending the completion of this investigation.   
 
The title to V2 was released to Miller’s Towing by D2 ; in lieu of the balance he owed on V2 
($1,389.33).  On 09-25-09, Miller’s Towing received a check for the balance owed from The Gomez Law 
Firm.  The Gomez Law Firm represents the family members  
 
 
 
of the  families.  Miller’s Towing released V2 to the Gomez Law Firm.        
 
Summary: 
 
On 08-28-09 at approximately 1835 hours, D1  was driving V1, a white 2009 Lexus ES350 
sedan, on loan from Bob Baker Toyota/Lexus.  D1 Saylor was traveling north on SR 125, with his wife, front 
seat passenger , daughter  in the right side back seat, and brother in 
law , in the left side back seat. 
 
On SR 125 N, in the area of the Grossmont College/Navajo Road exit, witnesses observed V1 exhibiting what 
was described as some type of car trouble.  According to these witnesses, V1 was at times traveling slower than 
the flow of traffic while on the freeway, or pulled over to the right hand (east) shoulder.  While on the shoulder, 
V1 was proceeding straight at slower than normal freeway speeds.  In other instances, V1 had what was noted 
as smoke or flames emanating from the front end and underside of V1.   
 
Witnesses stated they saw V1 a second time, after seeing it pulled off to the shoulder.  These sightings vary 
from seconds to a minute later on SR 125 N.  When V1 was observed again, it was seen traveling at a high rate 
of speed.  Witnesses estimated speed in excess of 90 MPH.  Once it reached the end of SR 125 N, V1 collided 
with V2 within the intersection of SR 125 and Mission Gorge Road.  V2 was in the number one left turn lane in 
position to make a left turn onto west bound Mission Gorge Road.  V2 was just beginning its left turn and was 
slowly accelerating forward before and during impact with V1. 
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V2 continued its now uncontrolled movement north, spun completely around, and came to its uncontrolled point 
of rest.  Ultimately, V2 rested facing west with a northern orientation, in the North West portion of the 
intersection.   
 
Concurrently, and post impact with V2, V1 continued north across the intersection.  The impact with V2 did 
little to diminish its high rate of speed, as witnesses estimated speeds in the area of 100 MPH.  One witnesses 
stated V1 actually appeared to accelerate post impact with V2.  V1 became briefly airborne when its wheels lost 
contact with Mission Gorge Road, and continued north until the right front tire hit the north curb.  With this 
impact, the right rear tire followed, and also struck the north curb.   
 
V1 again elevated and still traveling north, struck a wooden post and rail fence.  Immediately after striking the 
wooden fence, V1 slammed into a raised dirt embankment.  V1 was facing North West on impact, the front end 
and right front corner taking the full force of the impact.   According to the ME’s report, this is most likely what 
caused the fatal injuries to all four occupants of V1. 
 
 
 
V1 came off the embankment and became airborne again.  The front end facing west, V1 continued north until 
it landed on its left side, on a sloping decline into the river bed.  V1 bounced and became airborne again until it 
landed on its wheels in the brushy area of the river bed.  V1 was facing west when it came to its uncontrolled 
point of rest on 08-28-09, at approximately 1837 hours.  Witnesses stated V1 exploded however is unknown 
how the fire started.  The likely scenario is the intense heat generated by the over burdened braking system 
caused the field and V1 to catch fire.  The brush fire and subsequent vehicle fire was extinguished by the efforts 
of the Santee Fire Department.             
  
Medical Examiner’s Report: 
 
A copy of the ME Investigative and Autopsy Report’s has been placed into Sheriff’s evidence at the Santee 
Patrol station.  The ME cites the manner of death as “accident” and the cause of death as “blunt impact injuries” 
for all four occupants of V1.  Although the occupants had extensive thermal injury, fire most likely was not a 
factor in this fatality.  All occupants were conclusively identified via dental comparison.     
 
Area(s) of Impact (AOI): 
 
There are seven areas of impact obtained by MAIT, using a GPS coordinate system.  The AOI’s were 
determined by physical evidence, damage sustained by V1 and V2, and vehicle dynamics analysis.  The 
measurements are documented using Survey Data Points, which were converted into feet for purposes of this 
investigation.  Refer to MAIT’s investigative report for further detail.     
 
AOI #1 (V1 vs. V2) - 8.7’ north of the north edge of the cross gutter and 62’ west of the east curb line of 125 
N.   
 
AOI #2 (left front wheel assembly of V1 vs. the north curb of Mission Gorge Road) – 0’ on the north curb of 
Mission Gorge Road and 85.5’ west of the east curb line of 125 N.   
 
AOI #3 (right front wheel of V1 vs. the north curb of Mission Gorge Road) – 0’ on the north curb of Mission 
Gorge Road and 68.3’ west of the east curb line of 125 N.   
 
AOI #4 (right rear wheel of V1 vs. north curb of Mission Gorge Road) – 0’ on the north curb of Mission Gorge 
Road and 63.4’ west of the east curb line of 125 N.  
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AOI #5 (V1 vs. wooden fence) – 40’ north of the north curb line of Mission Gorge Road and 73.2’ west of the 
east curb line of 125 N.   
 
AOI #6 (V1 vs. dirt embankment) – 44.3’ north of the north curb line of Mission Gorge Road and 74.2’ west of 
the east curb line of 125 N.  
 
 
 
 
AOI #7 (V1 vs. the descending dirt river bed ground) – 103.6 north of the north curb line of Mission Gorge 
Road and 65.3’ west of the east curb line of 125 N.  
 
Intoxication Narrative: 
 
A blood sample was drawn from D2  at Sharp Memorial Hospital.  The blood was drawn incident to the 
strong odor of alcohol inside V2 upon initial contact with D2 Pretty.  Field coordination tests were not 
performed due to D2 medical status.  The blood draw resulted in a .00 % BAC for D2 .  DUI was 
not a factor in this incident.  Refer to the American Forensic Nurses Request for Service form for information 
concerning the blood draw.  The form is both attached to this report, with the original copy in Sheriff’s evidence 
at the Santee Patrol station.  
 
According to the ME’s report, drugs or alcohol were not a factor for any of the occupants of V1.      
 
Cause: 
 
A Lexus all weather rubber floor mat (part # 48050 PT908 – 48060 Front Driver>TPF<170”) is a part specific 
to a 2005 – 2009 Lexus RX400H sport utility vehicle.  Incident to a post collision vehicle inspection of V1 (a 
white 2009 Lexus ES350, CA license plate 6DRT323, Vin #JTHBJ46G792 ), a rubber mat with the 
above mentioned characteristics, was found in the driver side floor board of V1. 
 
V1 is a loaner vehicle registered to Bob Baker Toyota/Lexus, 1000 Arnele Avenue, in El Cajon California.  At 
some point, the RX400H all weather mat was placed in V1 at the above mentioned dealership.  Because this 
mat was not a part specific to the vehicle it was installed in, it caused a sudden unintended acceleration event.   
    
 
This occurred due to the following events: 
 
The accelerator pedal became trapped either in the grooves of the mat or underneath it, causing V1 to reach 
speeds greater than 100 MPH. 
 
The size of the mat with relation to the size of the floor board, did not allow room for easy manipulation to clear 
the pedal (the SUV mat is much larger than the sedan mat).   
 
The plastic retaining clips were not attached, which could allow for the mat to be forced forward, and apply 
further pressure on the accelerator pedal.   
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The following associated factors occurred: 
 
The vehicle was not equipped with a key that would other wise allow for manual emergency shut off.   The push 
button ignition feature had no emergency instantaneous shut off capability.  It is unknown, however unlikely 
that D1  knew of the 3 second delay to shut V1 off while in gear.   
 
As evidenced in the inspection of V1, the brakes most likely failed due to over burdened, excessive, and 
prolonged application at high speed.  There is also the possibility of prior brake wear damage caused when 
witness Bernard had a heavy, sustained braking event. 
 
As a whole, these events combined to cause V1 to become a runaway vehicle.  Per witness statements, and 
time/distance speed calculations, V1 traveled at greater than 100 MPH as it reached the end of SR 125 N.  D1 
Saylor simply ran out of time and options.  Therefore, the cause of this collision is excessive speed due to the 
improper mat placement.  The combined events were beyond the control of D1 Saylor regardless of what he did 
or did not do.  
 
Due to the catastrophic damage to V1, other avenues of unintended acceleration could not be explored.  Beyond 
the all weather floor mat, other and/or additional factors causing a sudden unintended acceleration event (re: 
electrical, mechanical, or computer generated) should be ruled out.  However, the obtainable evidence and 
witness statements indicate the unintended acceleration was caused by the accelerator becoming trapped in the 
floormat. 
 
At this time it cannot be determined what gear the automatic transmission was engaged in prior to impact.  At 
the time MAIT conducted their inspection of V1, the transmission indicated the attached lever was all the way 
in the rearward position.  As indicated in exemplar testing, this is indicative of V1’s shift lever in the “drive” 
position.   
 
V1 initially impacted V2, and then the dirt embankment.  As expressed in MAIT’s analysis, this type of impact 
would generate force consistent with front to rear energy.  This type of energy would force the shift lever 
forward, not backward. It is not likely the impact with V2 and the embankment would have forced the lever into 
drive.  However the lever could have been forced post impact by an occupant of V1.  
 
Opinions and Conclusions: 
 
In September of 2009, Toyota Motor Corporation ordered a recall of 3.8 million of their vehicles in the United 
States regarding their all weather rubber floor mats.  In November of 2009, Toyota Motor Corporation began 
the process of replacing or reconfiguring the accelerator pedals of 4 million Toyota/Lexus vehicles.   
 
 
 
 
The National Highway Traffic Safety Administration in conjunction with Toyota Motor Corporation should 
continue to research the use and design of the all weather rubber floor mat application in their vehicles.  Toyota 
Motor Corporation should also research the possibility alternate systems installed in their vehicles may be 
responsible for this or other sudden unintended acceleration events.   
 
In the interest of public safety, Bob Baker Toyota/Lexus, at 1000 Arnele Avenue in El Cajon California, should 
review their procedures for the following: 
 
Proper installation of equipment specific to certain vehicles 
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Communication between consumers and the appropriate staff with regard to customer complaints 
 
The means by which customers are informed of emergency operation of loaner and new vehicles.  This should 
extend beyond what is indicated in the owner’s manual alone.   
 
The means by which customers and staff are kept apprised of recall events and safety bulletins 
             
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Representatives from the El Cajon Office of the District Attorney were consulted on this case.  The possibility 
of criminal issues concerning this investigation was discussed.  The District Attorney’s Office was of the 
opinion that while this case may rise to the level of civil responsibility, criminal prosecution will not be 
considered at this time.      
 



CHP Officer & 3 Family Members Die in Mysterious Santee Crash 

 

Reported by: San Diego 6 News Team 
 
Email: newstips@sandiego6.com  
Last Update: 8:01 am 

SANTEE - Four people killed in a horrific crash and fire in Santee are believed to have been an off-duty California Highway Patrol Officer and 
members of his family.  
 
The San Diego County Medical Examiner's Office has not positively identified the victims, but they are believed to be Officer Mark Saylor and four 
members of his family.ir bodies, CHP Officer Brian Pennings said.  
 
The crash happened around 6:35 p.m. Friday when a Lexus rental vehicle smashed through the T-intersection at the terminus of state Route 125 at 
Mission Gorge Road, struck a Ford Explorer, plowed through a picket fence, over an embankment and came to rest in the bed of the San Diego 
River. The Lexus caught fire, and the victims were burned beyond recognition, CHP Officer Brian Pennings said.  
 
The officer confirmed initial reports that an occupant of the vehicle called 911 to report that the car's accelerator was stuck, and the vehicle was 
traveling at a high rate of speed and unable to stop.  
 
The highway in that area goes downhill for several miles from the area near Grossmont College and intersects with one of the busiest streets in the 
county.  
 
The victims possibly include Saylor's 45-year-old wife, Cleofe; his 13- year-old daughter, Mahala; and his brother-in-law, 38-year-old Chris Lastrella, 
Pennings said.  
 
Saylor, 45, tested school bus drivers and their vehicles, and inspected ambulances, tow trucks and armored vehicles for safety, Pennings said.  
 
"He was an outstanding officer who was well-respected by his peers," Pennings said. He was also a "passionate athlete who was very competitive."  
 
Pennings said Saylor would have completed 20 years as a highway patrolman in October, working in offices in western Los Angeles County and El 
Cajon before settling in the San Diego office in 1995. He began his current inspection assignment four years ago, he said.  
 
The Sheriff's Department is the lead investigative agency, and the CHP is assisting, he said.  
 
The driver of the Explorer, Phillip Pretty, 52, was hospitalized with moderate injuries, according to Pennings.  

 

  

  

CHP Officer Mark Saylor 
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Public memorial Saturday for CHP officer, family 
By Kristina Davis 
UNION-TRIBUNE STAFF WRITER 

2:00 a.m. September 4, 2009 

SAN DIEGO — A public memorial service for a California Highway Patrol officer and three family members who died in a 
fiery crash last week has been set for Saturday. 

The service will honor Officer Mark Saylor, 45; his wife, Cleofe, 45; his daughter, Mahala, 13; and his brother-in-law, 
Chris Lastrella, 38. 

The service will begin at 2:30 p.m. at Calvary Chapel, 1771 E. Palomar St., in Chula Vista. The church will open to the 
public at 2 p.m., and a viewing will follow the service until 8:30 p.m. 

The public and law enforcement are welcome to attend the service, though the family requests that law enforcement 
dress in civilian clothing and not in uniform. A separate law-enforcement-only service is planned at a later date. 

In lieu of flowers, the family has requested donations to the Mark Saylor Family Memorial Fund at USE Credit Union, 
8889 Rio San Diego, Suite 102, San Diego, CA 92108. 

The four were killed Aug. 28 when their loaned Lexus, driven by Saylor, crashed into a Ford Explorer on northbound 
state Route 125 at Mission Gorge Road in Santee. The Lexus plowed over a curb and through a fence before hitting an 
embankment and becoming airborne. It rolled several times before stopping and bursting into flames in the nearby San 
Diego River basin. 

Moments earlier, someone in the Lexus had called 911 to report a stuck accelerator. Investigators are still working to 
determine if the accelerator was stuck. 

Kristina Davis: (619) 542-4591;  
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Memorial for CHP Officer & 3 Family Members Killed in Runaway Car 

 

Reported by: San Diego 6 News Team 
 
Email: newstips@sandiego6.com  
Last Update: 9/05/2009 2:11 pm 

CHULA VISTA - A Highway Patrol officer, his wife, daughter 
and brother-in-law -- all killed in a fiery crash in Santee -- will be 
remembered at a memorial service Saturday in Chula Vista. 
 
Mark Saylor and his wife Cleofe, both 45, their 13-year-old 
daughter Mahala and 38-year-old brother-in-law Chris Lastrella 
were killed in the crash at 6:35 p.m. Aug. 28 at the end of state 
Route 125 at Mission Gorge Road. 
 
The officer was off-duty at the time of the crash. 
 
They were in a 2009 Lexus loaned by Bob Baker Lexus in El 
Cajon while their vehicle was being serviced, authorities said. 
One of the occupants, believed to be Cleofe Saylor, called 911 
to report the accelerator in the loaner vehicle was stuck. 
 
Witnesses said the car was going more than 100 mph shortly 
before the crash. 
 
The car collided with an SUV waiting to turn left at the end of 
Highway125, and continued across Mission Gorge Road, 
crashed through a fence and ended up on fire in the bed of the 
San Diego River. 
 
All four victims died at the scene. 
 
A public Celebration of Life will be held at 2:30 p.m. at Calvary 
Chapel, 1771 E. Palomar St., Chula Vista, CHP Officer Brad 
Baehr said. 
 
A viewing will be held from 2 p.m. to about 8:30 p.m., Baehr 
said. 
 
The family welcomes participation by the public and CHP, but 
law enforcement officers are asked to wear civilian clothes, 
according to Baehr. 
 

Previous story:  
 
SANTEE - The victims of a crash apparently caused by a stuck accelerator in a car loaned by an El 
Cajon dealership were positively identified Monday as an off-duty CHP officer, his wife, teenage 
daughter and brother-in-law.  
 
Killed in the fiery collision around 6:35 p.m. Friday, at the end of state Route 125 at Mission Gorge 

  

  

Related Links  

CHP Officer Mark Saylor 

SD6 Exclusive: Runaway 
cars & a San Diego woman 
who survived a runaway 
crash  
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Road, were California Highway Patrol Officer Mark Saylor of Chula Vista; his 45-year-old wife, Cleofe; 
13-year-old daughter, Mahala; and 38-year-old brother-in-law, Chris Lastrella, according to the San 
Diego County Medical Examiner's Office.  
 
The Saylor family was in a Lexus that was going more than 100 mph when it clipped a Ford Explorer, 
smashed through a fence and hit an embankment, which launched the car into the bed of the San Diego 
River, where it burst into flames.  
 
The driver of the Explorer, Phillip Pretty, 52, was hospitalized with moderate injuries.  
 
Both vehicles had been going north on SR 125, and the driver of Explorer was trying to turn left when 
the SUV was struck from behind, according to law enforcement and witness reports.  
 
Someone believed to be Saylor's wife called 911 to report that the car's accelerator was stuck, CHP 
Officer Brian Pennings said. That downhill stretch of northbound 125 near Grossmont College intersects 
one of the busiest streets in the county.  
 
Saylors' regular vehicle was being serviced at Bob Baker Lexus, which issued them the loaner car that 
crashed.  
 
A sales manager for the dealership, Blair Carter, told SignOn San Diego that employees' hearts sunk 
when they learned about the crash. He said the car was equipped with a system that should have shut 
off the engine if there was a major malfunction.  
 
Saylor, 45, was a safety officer who inspected school buses, ambulances, tow trucks and armored 
vehicles.  
 
"He was an outstanding officer who was well-respected by his peers," Pennings said, adding that Saylor 
was also a "passionate athlete who was very competitive."  
 
Pennings said Saylor would have completed 20 years as a highway patrolman in October, working in 
offices in western Los Angeles County and El Cajon before settling in the San Diego office in 1995. He 
began his safety inspection assignment four years ago.  
 
The Sheriff's Department is in charge of the accident investigation, and is being assisted by the CHP.
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Safety probe of certain Lexus 
ES models is closed 



latimes.com/business/la-fi-toyota-defect28-2009oct28,0,6777903.story 

latimes.com 
AUTOS 

Safety probe of certain Lexus ES models is closed 

Reports of sudden acceleration are unlikely to stem from a vehicle defect, the National Highway 
Traffic Safety Administration says. Toyota has blamed out-of-place floor mats for most such 
incidents. 

By Ralph Vartabedian and Ken Bensinger 

October 28, 2009 

Federal safety regulators have closed an inquiry into sudden-acceleration incidents involving certain Lexus ES 
models after concluding that a vehicle defect was unlikely. 
 
The National Highway Traffic Safety Administration's inquiry into the 2007 Lexus ES 350 and the 2002-03 Lexus 
ES 300 was triggered by a petition from Jeffrey A. Pepski of Plymouth, Minn. 
 
Pepski said his 2007 Lexus ES 350 suddenly accelerated from 60 to 80 mph while he was driving home from work 
Feb. 3. 
 
Pepski said his accelerator pedal became stuck and he could not lift it up with his right foot, while the car continued 
to accelerate. 
 
He said he "depressed the brake as hard as I could using both feet" but managed only to slow the vehicle. He 
eventually shifted into neutral and shut the engine off. 
 
Toyota said the incident was caused by an out-of-place floor mat, an explanation it has used in responding to most 
reports of sudden acceleration. The company also wrote to NHTSA officials, saying they should deny the petition. 
 
After considering the case for seven months and interviewing Toyota executives, NHTSA's Office of Defects 
Investigation said it decided to deny Pepski's petition for a formal investigation and issued a letter Tuesday outlining 
its response. 
 
NHTSA officials said any additional investigation "is unlikely to result in a finding of a defect" and cited the 
agency's "limited resources" in deciding to close the case. 
 
The denial letter, signed by Kathleen DeMeter, director of the defects office, was entered into an online 
investigation file Tuesday but then was removed later in the day without explanation. 
 
DeMeter could not be reached for comment on why the file was removed. Normally, such letters are issued publicly 
at the same time they are published in the Federal Register, which has not yet carried the formal notice. 
 
Since Pepski filed his request, Toyota has voluntarily recalled 3.8 million of its vehicles, after a horrific crash in San 
Diego involving a Lexus took the lives of a California Highway Patrol officer and his family. 
 
Although the local accident investigation is pending, Toyota has told owners of seven Toyota and Lexus models to 
remove floor mats, which reportedly can jam accelerator pedals. The company says it is working on a broader 
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solution to the problem. 
 
Toyota's recall includes the 2007 to 2010 Camry, the 2005 to 2010 Avalon, the 2004 to 2009 Prius, the 2005 to 2010
Tacoma and the 2007 to 2010 Tundra. The Lexus models recalled are the 2007 to 2010 ES 350 and the 2006 to 2010 
IS 250 and IS 350. 
 
NHTSA's denial of the Pepski petition marks the fifth time the agency has denied a petition for a probe of Toyota 
products for sudden acceleration defects since about 2000. 
 
The agency has not opened a formal evaluation related to the current recall by Toyota, though it has received written 
requests to conduct such an investigation. 
 
ralph.vartabedian@latimes.com 
 
ken.bensinger@latimes.com 
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Toyota 5-14-09 TO ODI, 
TOYOTA 10-5-09 TO NSA 

PART 573 



TOYOTA MOTOR NORTH AMERICA, INC.
WASHINGTON OFFICE TEL: (202) 775-1700

601 Thirteenth Street, NW #910 South Washington, DC 20005
FAX: (202) 463-8513

October 5, 2009

Mr. Daniel C. Smith
Associate Administrator for Enforcement
National Highway Traffic Safety Administration
1200 New Jersey Avenue, S.E.
Washington, D.C. 20590

RE: Certain Toyota and Lexus Vehicles
Potential Floor Mat Interference with Accelerator Pedal

Dear Mr. Smith:

On September 29, 2009 Toyota issued a consumer safety advisory to address the
risk of floor mat entrapment of accelerator pedals in certain Toyota and Lexus models.
Toyota urged owners of potentially affected vehicles to take out removable drivers' side
floor mats in their vehicles, pending the development of model-specific remedies.
Toyota undertook this action in response to reports of vehicles accelerating rapidly after
release of the accelerator pedal, due to entrapment of the pedal by unsecured or improper
floor mats.

The purpose of this letter is to transmit the information specified by Part 573 of
your regulations with respect to the forthcoming safety campaign, which will provide a
vehicle-based remedy for affected vehicles to reduce the risk of future incidents.

Although Toyota is willing to identify this campaign as a safety recall in the
owner communication about the campaign, Toyota has not determined that the vehicles
identified in item 2, below, contain a "safety-related defect" within the meaning of the
federal vehicle safety laws. Nevertheless, Toyota will voluntarily notify its customers of
this campaign and will voluntarily cooperate with NHTSA's recall procedures by
providing six quarterly reports of campaign completion.

Toyota understands that NHTSA will assign a recall number to this campaign, as
if it were a campaign conducted under the Safety Act, and will post the information about
the campaign on the NHTSA/ODI website. Toyota also requests that the summary of the
campaign on the NHTSA/ODI website contain a notation that Toyota has not made a
decision that these vehicles contain a safety-related defect.
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A draft owner notification letter will be provided under separate cover. Please see
the following information, as specified in Part 573 of your regulations:

1. Manufacturer's name/address:

Toyota Motor Corporation ["TMC"]
1, Toyota-cho, Toyota-city,
Aichi-ken, 471-8571, Japan

Affiliated U.S. Sales Company

Toyota Motor Sales, USA, Inc. ["TMS"]
19001 South Western Avenue
Torrance, CA 90509

2. Vehicles involved in this notification:

Based on production records, we have determined the affected vehicle population
to be the population described in the table below:

Make! Model Manufac-
________

VN Production
Car Line Year turer VDS VIS Period

2007-
Camry TBD TBD TBD TBD2010

Avalon
2005-

TBD TBD TBD TBD2010

2004-
Prius TBD TBD TBD TBD2009

2005.-
Tacoma TBD TBD TBD TBD2010

2007-
Tundra TBD TBD TBD TBD2010

Lexus 2007-
TBD TBD TBD TBDES 350 2010

Lexus IS 2006-
250/350 2010

TBD TBD TBD TBD



Please note this list of vehicles is preliminary and may change as Toyota's
internal investigation continues. We will advise you promptly of any changes to
this list.

3. Total number of vehicles:

As noted in item 2, above, Toyota is still in the process of determining the scope
of the affected vehicle population. We currently estimate that there are 3.8
million vehicles identified in item 2, above; however, this estimate is subject to
change as Toyota refines the number of affected vehicles by model.

4. Approximate percentage of vehicles estimated to actually contain the
condition:

Unknown

5. Description of the condition:

Toyota has determined that there is a potential for an accelerator pedal to get
stuck in the wide open position due to an unsecured or incompatible driver's floor
mat. A stuck open accelerator pedal may result in very high vehicle speeds and
make it difficult to stop the vehicle, which could cause a crash, serious injury or
death.

6. Chronological summary of events leading to this campaign:

In 2007, Toyota undertook a voluntary safety campaign of all-weather floor mats
designed for certain Lexus ES350 and Toyota Camry models to address the risk
of potential floor mat interference with the accelerator pedal.

Recent events have prompted Toyota to take a closer look at the potential for
accelerator pedal entrapment by unsecured or incompatible floor mats in these
models, as well as other Toyota and Lexus models on which complaints of
entrapment have been received. On September 29, Toyota determined to conduct
a safety campaign to address this condition.

7. Description of Campaign (including schedule for dealer and customer
notification):

Toyota will notify owners of affected vehicles to take out any removable driver's
floor mat and not replace it with any other floor mat, pending the development of
model-specific remedies. Toyota expects to carry out this customer notification
via first class mail, and expects to begin the mailing in late October (by model)



and expects to complete the mailing in December. A draft copy of the owner
letter will be provided under separate cover.

After Toyota completes its countermeasure development actions, it will provide a
second notification to owners of affected vehicles about the availability of a free
remedy. Toyota will provide you with an advance draft of the notification for
your review when it is available. Toyota does not currently have a firm schedule
for the second notification; however, Toyota will provide such a schedule as soon
as possible. Please note that different models may be ready for the second
notification at different times. Toyota will keep your staff informed as this
schedule evolves.

Toyota has notified its dealers about the safety advisory. A copy of the dealer
communication will be provided under separate cover. When the second
notification for customers is ready to begin, Toyota will notify its dealers and
provide appropriate documentation for the action to them. This schedule will be
developed in parallel with the schedule for second notification of customers.

Toyota believes that the reimbursement provisions of Part 573 are not applicable
to this campaign, because no vehicle owner will have obtained the as-yet
undeveloped countermeasure(s) at his/her own expense.

Toyota appreciates this opportunity to cooperate with NHTSA. Should you
have any questions about this information, please let me know at (202) 775-1707.

Sincerely,

TOYOTA MOTOR N RTH AMERICA, INC.

Chris Santucci
Assistant Manager
Technical & Regulatory Affairs
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